
IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Meeting Minutes     Page 1 of 7 

February 20, 2014 
 

 

IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Meeting Minutes 

 

Date:  Tuesday, February 20, 2014 

Time:  1:07 PM 

Location: Lower Saucon Township Council Meeting Room 

Attendance: Haz Hijazi and Donna Louder, Landfill Committee Members; Al Schleyer, IESI; Chris 

Taylor, Hanover Engineering, Host Municipal Inspector; Priscilla deLeon, Council Liaison; 

Diane Palik, LST 

 

Mr. Schleyer went through the monthly tonnages for January 2014.  MSW was 19,301.1 tons.  C&D waste 

was 1,524.1 tons.  Residual waste total was 1,169.5 tons.  The asbestos out of that total was 195.9 tons.  Our 

out-of-state waste is 12,815.3 tons and that represents 58% of the overall waste received in January.  We had 

3.78 tons of recycling and 83% of the residents that dropped off recycling were from LST.  The number of 

commercial vehicles was 2,016 trucks. 

 

Mr. Schleyer went through the Form-U waste submittals from January and a few in February.  One was wind 

kits which was a bag house dust approved January 3, 2014.  Code environmental Solvay was asbestos waste 

disposal and was approved January 22, 2014.  Talbot Estate also had some asbestos and January 22, 2014 

was the approval.  Westbury Adult Care, asbestos, approved January 22, 2014.  Port Authority of NY and NJ 

one of their buildings had asbestos removal and disposal of that was approved January 22, 2014.  We had 

Marcal dba Soundview Paper Company, which is a paper sludge submitted February 14, 2014 and the RBH 

Group was another asbestos waste and requested approval February 14, 2014.  

 

Mrs. deLeon asked for an update on the paper sludge concerns.  Mr. Schleyer said he saw some 

correspondence on the paper sludge submitted as an alternate daily cover to be blended with soil for their 

routine daily cover operations.  This has special attachments to it that were submitted using the Form U 

process that he was instructed to do by the department.  They are still waiting for a complete approval on 

that.  It was noted in the Form U it has a slightly musty odor to it.  He saw samples of it, and it was very 

faint.  He’ll see what it is when a truckload is brought.  The whole approval process for a alternate daily 

cover, since that’s the first one requested by IESI, they are going through the initial phases of how the 

protocol is for that.  Mrs. deLeon said the Township has a 15 day review.  Mr. Taylor said you’ll see how a 

truckload smells.  Mr. Schleyer said you can see five or ten gallons worth of sample that he observed, but 

he’s just saying it’s a very faint odor and as that waste comes in, it was a concern to Lauressa would there be 

an odor to it.  Once the truck gets there and dumps out, he’ll witness whether it’s faint or not.  It’s still in a 

pending approval process.  He hasn’t received any official approvals. 

 

Mrs. deLeon said she wants to note in the February 1
st
 police report responding to that gas incident on 

Applebutter Road that Sam had commented he smelled a musty odor.  All of a sudden we are seeing musty 

odors which we never saw before. Mr. Schleyer said this waste material is not even on site yet.  Mrs. deLeon 

said it was just a question. 

 

Ms. Louder asked where they planned to use this for coverage?  Mr. Schleyer said at the working face, it’s a 

daily cover, where the garbage is.  Ms. Louder said what cell?  Mr. Schleyer said wherever they are working.  

Ms. Louder said the one that’s open now, the one closest to Steel City on the top?  Mr. Schleyer said if the 

approval comes through for it at that time, yes, they’ll use it there.   Ms. Louder said then you would just go 

on wherever else you needed it.  Mr. Schleyer said yes.  It’s used as a daily cover, not an intermediate of the 

long-term.  Ms. Louder said she understands it’s a 6” cover on top of the trash.  When the days over, you fill 

it over, it’s done with, then the next morning they come in at 5:50 am and they scrape it back off.  Mr. 

Schleyer said correct. 

 

Mr. Schleyer said he noted for groundwater their next sampling event is coming up the week of March 17
th
 

for the first quarter of 2014.   Mr. Taylor said before then you’ll have the North Slope road checked out and 

make sure it’s cleared.  Mr. Schleyer said absolutely.  It will be read for the samplers.  

 



IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Meeting Minutes     Page 2 of 7 

February 20, 2014 
 

 

Mr. Schleyer said general correspondence for the past month is typical of the Form U applications which 

they had just discussed.  The abatement system report is monthly and keeps continuing. In January, they sent 

in the 2013 recycling report to the Township and submitted their air quality compliance reports.  The 4Q13 

facility report, as well as the 4Q13 ground water report, have been submitted.  It was sent in January 6
th
 and 

states how many tons of cardboard that was sent in.  Mrs. deLeon said she wants to make sure it showed up 

somewhere on the log, but doesn’t remember seeing anything on that.  She wanted to know if that should go 

to the Committee.  Mr. Schleyer said all it states is how many tons of comingle they received, scrap metal 

and cardboard.  Mrs. deLeon said she’s interested in getting a copy of it and should probably come 

automatically to the Landfill Committee.  There should be a line added to the submission log.  The due date 

is January 15
th
.   She asked Ms. Palik to add on the chart, Recycling Report Due.   

 

Mr. Taylor asked if any of the reports indicate any violations or any out of compliance conditions.  Mr. 

Schleyer said no, none of them did.    They were all within their permit requirements.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said what is the AQ compliance reports?  Mr. Schleyer said air quality.  Mrs. deLeon said 

should that be on the submission log?  Mr. Schleyer said they are due every six months, the end of January 

and July.   She asked Mr. Taylor to add it onto the submission report.   Mr. Taylor said he did get the air 

quality report.  He got it in an email from Ms. Palik that she distributed.  He’ll make sure it gets on the 

document submission log. 

 

Mr. Schleyer said next is the PA DEP inspections at the landfill.  Inspections and meetings they had January 

9, 2014. Susan French and Dillon Evans were there for the standard engineering monthly meeting.  January 

15, 2014 Wally Govern conducted a site inspection and February 12, 2014, Susan French was back for the 

February meeting.   

 

Mr. Taylor said he has the Wally Govern report and it indicates no violations.  In the comment section he 

addresses the odor complaints that were dealt with up to that time and the results of his investigation.  Mrs. 

deLeon said what was his conclusion?  Mr. Taylor said there are several addressed.  He addresses a 

complaint on December 31
st
 in which it appears that it may have been the burning of burn barrels that were a 

contributing factor to the odors in Steel City.  He addresses the complaint of January 14
th
 which was from a 

resident of Williams Township in which he concludes that a local garbage collection may have been a 

contributing factor.  Mrs. deLeon said in all the years she’s lived in Steel City, she never smelled garbage 

from a garbage truck going or coming from our community.  Mr. Taylor said that’s a good point.  Mrs. 

deLeon said she just wants to make sure that any citizen complaint we received through DEP, Allen or us, 

that it’s in the minutes and it was discussed a little bit.  Mr. Taylor said the other report in the meeting notes 

is from Susan French, the engineer’s report for the meeting on January 9, 2014.  In her engineer’s monthly 

status report, she does not note any issues.  She does note that in Phase IV, final capping in Cell 4C is 

essentially finished and mulch will be added as weather permits.  Mr. Schleyer said it’s still on the list as 

soon as the snow clears out.  Mr. Taylor said the landfill is completely snow covered right now.  Mrs. 

deLeon said the view from the top of that mountain looking at the Slate Belt area was just spectacular.  She 

went on the tour this morning.  She’s never been up there when she saw the LV covered in snow like that. 

 

Mr. Schleyer said host municipal inspections were January 16 and February 20, 2014 by Chris Taylor.  Mr. 

Taylor said it seems to him that there should possibly been an inspection between those two.  He thinks he 

had one the week following the 16
th
.   Mr. Schleyer said he must have overlooked it on the sign in sheets.  

Mr. Taylor said get it in the record.  On today’s inspection, Allen reported there was a break in one of the gas 

header pipes.  Mr. Schleyer said he had a call from Mike Sheldon, their Operations Manager.  He stated one 

of the equipment head encountered a header pipe when they were clearing out an area for the waste disposal 

and broke it open.  When that happens, and it’s a plastic pipe, it shut down the BRE power plant as it was an 

immediate rush of oxygen which would trigger their sensors and shut down their equipment.  At the time, the 

flare was still operating.  Once the power plant had shut down, they noticed some gas odor in the area and at 

10:40 am they had a call from a resident on Skyline Drive to let us know she had smelled something.  He told 

her what happened and they were in the process of making a repair to the pipe.  At 10:45 am, Mike had 

called him back and said the patch was made on the pipe, so they had the flare running.  At 11:15 am, he 



IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Meeting Minutes     Page 3 of 7 

February 20, 2014 
 

 

called the resident back and the resident said the odor dissipated and they couldn’t smell anything anymore.  

The pipe repair was adequate for the odor control, and then it was just a matter of getting the power plant 

started up again.  Before he had left the office today, the power plant was running.   

 

Mr. Hijazi asked where the header was broken?  Mr. Schleyer said it was a shallow newer header that was 

put in last year and they were at the workface area.  As they are filling the area, they are coming back over 

where the existing landfill gas wells are.  The equipment has scraped the dirt off and at the same time it was a 

shallower location and it just caught a piece of the pipe and cracked it.  It looked like it was at Cell 4A when 

they were up there which is where the active disposal area is.  Mr. Taylor said the patch made today was a 

temporary fix and they will undertake a permanent fix soon.  Mr. Schleyer said correct.  They ordered the 

parts to come in overnight delivery so hopefully they can make that repair tomorrow.  Mr. Taylor said you 

would try to valve off that section during the repair.  Mr. Schleyer said he has not had time to go back to 

figure that out.  This afternoon they will be looking at it and will make the best attempt to keep the flare 

operational just to keep pulling on the well field in the other areas during that repair time.  Mr. Taylor said 

during that repair time, there could be some release of gas that’s in the pipe.  Mr. Schleyer said it’s possible 

as the piece that was damaged was slightly crushed, just elongated so you have to cut that out and put in two 

fuse couplers and a solid piece in between and then electri-fuse those couplers so it creates a permanent 

bond.  Mr. Taylor said please email the committee when that work is done so we know what the timing was.  

Mr. Schleyer said sure. 

 

Mr. Taylor said Donna Louder was asking about the wind direction when he was on site at 11:30 am.  Today 

the weather station indicated it out of the north blowing 5 to 10 mph.  At a later time, he noted it shift 

towards the NE and then before he left, it shifted to the south.  It was blowing every which way.  Basically it 

was blowing from NE to SW upon his arrival which would have it blowing towards Applebutter Road from 

the landfill.  It seemed to be shifted to the south towards the Lehigh River when he left.  The other 

observations he made during today’s inspection was that the BRE plant was not running upon his arrival at 

11:30 am, but as Allen stated, it was put back on line at about 12:30 pm.  There was no litter or mud along 

Applebutter Road, the entrance drive or at the landfill office.  There was a strong odor of landfill gas at the 

entrance and at the landfill office that he noticed at various times during the inspection, which is attributed to 

the gas line break that Allen just described, the truck wash was not being used.  The working face is muddy, 

but trucks are not tracking mud down from the working face.  Allen stated he would put the truck wash into 

use if need be.  The necessary areas of the landfill have been plowed and snow removed so that operations 

will continue.  That includes the entrance drive, the access road and the recycling area.  Wind screens were 

observed to be in place at the working face.  Three trucks were waiting and two trucks were dumping at the 

working face.  The west high wall was observed and some minor sluffing of soil was observed down the face 

of the wall, due to above freezing conditions and the first coming out of the ground.  No major slope failures 

were observed at the wall.  That’s the substance of what he observed in the inspection today.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said she went on the tour today and upon entering the landfill she did smell a horrendous smell 

of gas.  Allen explained to them what happened.  The smell they smelled, that was a result of the BRE plant, 

not IESI gas wells.  Mr. Schleyer said he smelled landfill gas odor.  At that point, they were shut down and 

there was a pipe break.  It could have been a combination.  It’s hard to say where to specify at that point 

where it was from.  Mrs. deLeon said is that considered methane?  Mr. Schleyer said there’s always methane 

in landfill gas, but it is an odorless gas.  The others you smell are gases associated with the landfill or 

condensate.   Mrs. deLeon said that question was raised at their Council meeting last night and she’s not the 

expert, but she knows what the experts tell her and when you smell that gas, it’s methane, and yes, methane 

technically doesn’t smell, doesn’t have an odor, they put an additive in it.  If it’s a landfill situation, it’s 

because of the other stuff mixed in with it that you smell it.  Mr. Hijazi said correct.  Mrs. deLeon said she 

tried saying that last night.  You have to read the Council minutes or listen to the tape.   

 

Mr. Hijazi said is BRE back running?  Mr. Schleyer said yes.  They were running before he left to come to 

the meeting.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said January they had 2,016 commercial trucks for the month.  Twenty-two of those trucks 



IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Meeting Minutes     Page 4 of 7 

February 20, 2014 
 

 

were overweight, over the 80,000 lb. GVW or whatever a smaller truck GVW is.   They issued 13 warnings 

and 9 suspensions.  One of those 9 suspended were greater than the 3% overweight.  That was one of the 

tractor trailers. 

 

Ms. Louder said have you heard anything from the Township on initiating the truck weights?  Mr. Schleyer 

said he has not heard anything.   Ms. Louder said the PD was doing a truck weight training thing and she 

doesn’t know where that stands.  It was to try to get this under control as it’s been going on for awhile.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said for the BRE and flare operations, typically each month he lists start-up and shut-down 

procedures, and occurrences which have happened over the past month.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said they are BRE is primarily still the primary gas control system to produce electricity.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said the North Slope sedimentation traps are still there and catching whatever water is melting 

today. 

 

Mr. Schleyer said the perimeter road has not been inspected for some time as it’s pretty treacherous right 

now to get down there as it’s snow covered. 

 

Mr. Schleyer said the abatement system for the most part was functioning properly.  AB7 well had some 

pump and transducer issues and they were repaired in January and then the indicator panel was replaced in 

February.  All the wells are pumping and operational.  AB6 and AB8 the wells on either side of AB7 were 

functioning properly at the time of AB7’s problems.  There was a little delay getting equipment personnel in 

there at times due to the snow, but they got it running.  

 

Mr. Schleyer said leachate collection; the flow rates are monitored and reported and attached to this report 

are the weekly flow rates.  Mr. Taylor said let’s take a look at those.  The thing we take the most note of is 

the secondary flows in LMC-8.  Based on the chart, the secondary flows in LMC-8 are in excess of 100 

gallons per acre per day which is a regulatory benchmark set by the DEP for each of the six weeks reported 

for 2014 and the last week of 2013.  The highest flow was 541 gallons per day and most recently 223 gallons 

per day.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said radiation monitoring alarms were triggered on January 15, 2014.  February 8 they had 

three different long haul trucks, TDC-99, I-131 and the third one was also I-131.  These were all reported to 

PA DEP as well as the Township.  They are within their disposal requirements that they can accept the 

standard medical waste type isotopes. 

 

Mr. Schleyer said Phase IV construction activities – they are completing the new tie-in of the cell that was 

previously constructed so for E Stage 2, they are tying in the leachate collection pipes and preparing to 

finalize the tie-in and removed the stormwater diversion berm so it will be a continuous connection between 

4E stage 2 and 4E stage 1.  Work conditions are going slow due to the weather conditions.   Mr. Taylor asked 

if there was a timeline for the completion of the tie-in.  Mr. Schleyer said every time they set an estimated 

time line, it gets cold and snowy and changes it pretty quick.  It’s truly dependent on the weather right now.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said regarding the complaint list, there were no complaints recorded in January.  He’ll go 

through what we have for February.  February 1
st
 there was a complaint where Officers Louder and Gunshore 

responded and after the investigation, it was determined to be at the BRE facility.  February 10
th
 he received 

an email report from Mr. Cahalan which said a nearby resident was traveling on Applebutter Road and 

detected a methane gas odor.  He also reported he had detected odors for the last six months. IESI got the 

name and phone number of that gentleman and he was contacted to try to inform us of the times he smelled 

something so they can act accordingly and investigate it.   Mrs. deLeon said she doesn’t remember getting an 

email from Jack’s office.  Do we know about that?  Mr. Taylor said he recalls getting that email.   Mr. 

Schleyer said February 12
th
 they had a Steel City resident call the office and said he detected odors.  Mr. 

Schleyer returned the call on February 13
th
 to discuss it.  He just said he wanted us to know he could smell 



IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Meeting Minutes     Page 5 of 7 

February 20, 2014 
 

 

something and if we ever respond to anyone ever calling about odor complaints.  Mr. Schleyer gave him his 

cell phone number and told him we do respond to complaints as they get them and they will be glad to 

investigate him and call Mr. Schleyer when he smells something and they’ll come over and check it out if 

they are available.  Mrs. deLeon said was it a garbage smell or a gas smell?  Mr. Schleyer said he didn’t get 

the call.  He just said he had some odors.  He thought they might be from the landfill.  As a follow-up from 

February 20
th
 for today, they had a resident from Skyline Drive call and report a gas odor complaint at 10:40 

am.   It was referenced with the 12” header damage we had just before the call came through.  Mike Sheldon, 

the Operations Manager, immediately began making temporary repairs on the pipe and he completed them 

shortly after they received the phone call complaint.  At 11:15 am, he returned a call back to that resident and 

the resident said they didn’t smell any more odors.  They were getting the power plant and the flare back in 

operation after that.  As long as they can get the materials in tomorrow, they will be making that permanent 

repair to the pipe damage.  Mrs. deLeon said will there be an additional odor due to that?  Mr. Schleyer said 

they are going to do everything they can to prevent that.  Mrs. deLeon asked what time of the day they are 

doing this?  Mr. Schleyer said when they get the materials.   

 

Mr. Taylor said in addition to the complaints formally logged in IESI’s office, just to reiterate Wally Govern 

has in his January inspection report he references a complaint that was received by the DEP, but not called 

into IESI on January 14
th
 from a resident of Williams Township.  His inspection showed that possibly local 

garbage collection in the complainant’s neighborhood had been a factor.  Mrs. deLeon said you would expect 

that in the summer time, but not in the winter time.  It’s hard to keep track of all these complaints as some are 

coming in to the Township, some to 9-1-1.  We don’t even know the 9-1-1 ones, but she guesses we would as 

they would trigger a police report.  Mr. Schleyer said any report they are aware of, they point them out at the 

meetings.  Mrs. deLeon said people have been calling the DEP number and it depends on how the DEP is 

taking those calls.  They don’t always respond to them, they are just logged in.  How do we know?  The 

problem is we have waste and we have air, let’s hope the two of them talk.  The DEP is an air number, not a 

waste number.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said she wanted to talk about the incident that happened on February 12
th
.  After hearing about 

the February 1
st
 incident where the person who lives on Ringhoffer Road called 9-1-1 because of the gas 

complaint, then the City of Bethlehem and Fire and Lower Saucon Police and Fire were dispatched.  It was a 

Saturday.  She just wanted to make sure that our residents had a procedure to follow so that when they smell 

landfill odors or gas.  She wanted a policy approved by Council.  It was on the agenda at Council last night.  

In the interim, Jack prepared a chart and it went back to December 24, 2012 of the complaints he knew 

about.  If you look at this chart and you look at what they hear, it’s not all on this chart.  She sent an email to 

DEP and wanted to know what they suggested when people called who smelled methane gas.  Roger Bellis 

from DEP in Wilkes-Barre responded and said for those incidents where gas odors are detected in their 

home, landfill gas or similar, and they are experiencing health problems, as related to odors, that resident 

should immediately call 9-1-1 for emergency assistance.  Emergency management personnel will contact 

DEP if assistance is needed.  For nuisance odors like dust, or visible emissions from stacks, individuals 

should contact the DEP complaint line.  The number is 1-866-255-5158, press 2 to be directed to the 

Northeast Regional office complaint answering service.  Each complaint will be evaluated on a case-by-case 

basis and assigned to a priority level for investigative response by the DEP.  She wanted to know what 

happens when a resident detects a gas odor outside in the Applebutter Road area.  They wrote back and said 

when a resident detects an odor in the Applebutter Road area, they are welcome to call the DEP complaint 

line to report it, but understand the air quality malodor regulation can only be enforced by odors causing a 

nuisance at someone’s residence or place of employment.   Becky Easely called her and they had a nice chat.  

When Mrs. deLeon sent the February 6
th
 email, then they had all the snowstorms and this was February 11

th
 

she was driving home and went by Ringhoffer Road.  She smelled a faint odor when she went past the 

landfill, past BRE, down past the little knoll, and she smelled it.  It wasn’t terrible, it was just a whiff.  The 

next day she called DEP and asked to speak to someone.  They said everybody was out in the fields.  The 

snow came, nobody called her.  Earlier this week, Becky called Mrs. deLeon and said she had been there and 

she prepared a report.  She was out there coincidentally doing a full compliance evaluation.  Apparently, 

there were three containers at BRE with caps on, and the odor was there.  It was detectable in the area of the 

tanks and an odor was apparent around the oil/water separator.  The person that worked there was supposedly 



IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Meeting Minutes     Page 6 of 7 

February 20, 2014 
 

 

testing two times a month the outside air around the tanks.  They took readings and a reading of 5700 ppms 

as methane was found at the oil/water separator and 4266 ppms as methane at the water separator vents.  

There’s definitely an odor of methane.  It’s in her report, methane, she didn’t make it up.   The guy waited 

ten minutes and took readings again which were lower at 451 ppms at the oil/water separator and 328 ppms 

at the vents.  He explained that possibly water was being released at the moment the high readings took 

place.  There was an email from this other guy and he said they inadvertently forgot to put the caps on the 

tanks and that’s why they smelled it on those days.  There is methane gas going on out there.    

 

Ms. Louder said BRE is a separate entity but they are just on IESI’s property.  The landfill is taking the fall 

for that problem, it appears.  Mrs. deLeon said didn’t she say that last night.  It’s not fair.  Ms. Louder said 

it’s not fair, but they can’t do anything to BRE.  Nobody seems to be able to touch them.  We have an 

ordinance in the Township for odors being a nuisance and we can’t fine them.  They are untouchable.  Ms. 

Louder said their operational standards are not comparable to IESI’s.  IESI’s operational standards are good, 

excellent compared to BRE.  BRE needs an adjustment and she’s been saying this from the day they opened 

up.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said you just have to keep calling and registering it with DEP.   Her husband called her up at 

10:30 p.m. and told her he smelled that smell.  Then he was on Easton Road and he could see the power plant 

and he smelled it down there.  Then Tuesday night after 8 p.m., he was going past the sewage treatment plant 

and he did not smell the typical sewage treatment smell.  He smelled methane gas like he smelled on 

Applebutter Road.  That’s unacceptable for a community to have to do that.  Nobody else would like this if it 

was within the radius of their house.  Why the people in that area have to put up with it and everyone just 

says okay.  She’ll keep talking about this.  Ms. Louder said did she go inside BRE when the tanks were 

inspected?  Mrs. deLeon said she had no idea.   

 

Mr. Taylor had some questions on outstanding permit applications that IESI had.  The alternative daily 

cover/gas cullet minor permit mod, do they have anything to tell on the status of that?  Mr. Schleyer said it’s 

going to be linked with the Marcal paper sludge and they’ll provide a response.  The department will be 

making a decision on that minor permit mod as well as Marcal dba Soundview Paper Co.  It should be 

coming out shortly.   

 

Mr. Taylor said the ADC glass cullet minor application is from a couple months ago.  If the department is 

kind of linking that because it just came in, that’s fine.  Mr. Schleyer said that’s his understanding that they 

are going to do that as they had submitted that paper sludge which was not in the original minor permit mod 

so they’ll address it all at one time.  They will expect to receive that permit shortly. 

 

Mr. Taylor said your application for mining permit on the Fox property, what is the status of that?  Mr. 

Schleyer said he doesn’t have a final answer on that.   

 

Mr. Taylor said the last thing is during the last committee meeting, they asked Allen about some documents 

he subsequently provided to Mr. Taylor and then Mr. Taylor provided them to the Township under 

transmittal dated February 22, 2014, the first of those was a certificate entitled large coal mining operator’s 

license which IESI received, issued January 8, 2014, and is good through the end of 2014 and Allen has 

previously explained a license is a pre-requisite to getting a mining permit sort of like a bureaucratic thing 

but they have to get that license before they are allowed to receive a permit for mining and grading and soil 

removal that they are proposing to do on the Fox property.  It’s technically considered a mining operation 

from the DEP’s regulatory standpoint.  Is all that correct?  Mr. Schleyer said it sounds right. 

 

Mr. Taylor said a holdover from the last committee meeting in January was there had been a question about 

how much area of the landfill is sitting at final grade and ready for capping, but has not yet been final 

capped.  Also, part of this January 22
nd

 transmittal, he transmitted what Allen had given him which is a map 

that showed areas of the landfill that are final caps and also an area of the landfill that is sitting at final grade, 

but not yet capped which is down on the south face immediately west of the area final capped this last 

December.  He wanted to know the area of that.  Mr. Schleyer said it was close to two acres.  Mr. Taylor said 



IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Meeting Minutes     Page 7 of 7 

February 20, 2014 
 

 

then the answer to that question is at the landfill there are two acres sitting at final grade ready for final cap, 

but not final capped.  Everything else is either final capped or still in an area that is low enough to receive 

more garbage.  Mr. Schleyer said correct.  Mr. Taylor said that closes out that issue from the last meeting. 

 

Mrs. deLeon said because of the snow issues in NYC and NJ, you were allowed to have dumping on 

Sunday?  Mr. Schleyer said it only occurred one Sunday.  Mrs. deLeon said she knows that, but since our last 

meeting it happened and the minutes should reflect that.  Mr. Schleyer said since some of their waste flow 

can come from the NY transfer stations, NY state can declare that as a state of emergency for waste removal 

as they also used their waste disposal trucks as plow trucks so they get tied up plowing snow or picking up 

garbage and sometimes it gets backed up.  They had excess waste so they requested Bethlehem Landfill to be 

open on a Sunday.  Sam had reached out to the DEP NE Regional office, as well as Jack Cahalan to request a 

special authorization to allow IESI to be open.  They did accept waste on that Sunday which they had 

authorization on February 16
th
.  It’s a special exception and has to be requested each time.  He was not on-

site but available by phone and their Operations Manager, Mike Sheldon was on-site.  It was a pretty routine 

day, just another day.  It was only for four long haul trucks, not for anyone else. 

 

Ms. Louder said now that this paper sludge is being put out there for the daily cover, is the sewage sludge 

being taken off the table?  Mr. Schleyer said they’ve never accepted municipal waste sewage sludge.  Ms. 

Louder said it was in the permit request.  Mr. Schleyer said that was a composted.  It’s a completely different 

type of waste at that point.  It’s not like raw dewatered sewage sludge.  It’s has completely different 

characteristics.  Ms. Louder said you mix it with dirt and use it, but it still had the odors.  The bottom line is 

it’s off the table if that paper sludge goes through?   Mr. Schleyer said for now.  Typically if it’s composted 

sewage sludge, it might be used for agricultural purposes.  Since other landfills have been approved to use 

that, why should they exclude something that’s potential?  Mr. Taylor said what would the source of that be?  

Mr. Schleyer said they didn’t have a source for it at the time.  That’s why it was just a general approval 

request, but should they have found a source, then that specific source would have to go through the approval 

process with DEP and approval process with the Township as well before they could bring it in and use it.  

It’s similar to the Form U process.   

 

Mr. Taylor said the next meeting will be on Thursday, March 20
th
 at 1:00 pm at the Township office. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 2:16 p.m. 

 


